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Improve through the years

JOHNSON
HEAT CONTROL

contributes to that improvement

continual advancement” and
careful stidy of ever-
changing requirements

over a span of nearly
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Johnson equipment in hospitals effects automatic

regulation of heat in operating rooms, patients’
quarters, administrative offices, and service
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Architects for the Notrth
American Life Building:
Marani, Lawson & Morris.
General Contractors: The
George A, Fuller Company
of Canada, Limited.

Some of Canada’s Leading
Buildings equipped with
Otis-Fensom Signal Control
Elevators—

Architects Bldg., Montreal.
Aldred Building, Montreal.
Bell Telephone Head Office,

Montreal.

Sun Life Assurance
Company, Montreal.
University Towers,
Montreal.
Canadian Bank of Com-
merce, Toronto.
Canada Life Assurance Co.,
Toronto.

Canada Permanent Bldg.,
Toronto.

Royal York Hotel, Toronto.
Star Building, Toronto.
Price Brothers Building,
Quebec.
Confederation Building,
Ottawa.

Canada Building, Windsor,
Ontario.

C.N.R. Hotel, Vancouver.
Medical Dental Building,
Vancouver.

HAMILTON

The supremacy of Otis-Fensom was again made clear by
choice for the latest of Canada’s Fine Buildings, the
North American Life, Toronto.

Three Otis-Fensom Elevators of the Signal Control type
serve this new and distinguished building perfectly.
The contract also included the hollow metal elevator
entrances, signal system, and door operators, all of our
own manufacture, installed by trained men of our own
organization. The ability to place the entire responsi-
bility for the complete vertical transportation contract

with one firm is a generally recognized advantage.

OTIS-FENSOM ELEVATOR COMPANY

LIMITED

ONTARIO

Offices in all principal cities
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TEIEIL

The Building Material of the Present and the Future

Steel is the safest—the strongest building
material known to man. Steel is unequalled
for adaptability and speed of construction.
Steel is permanent, incombustible, and com-
bines a high measure of resiliency with the
maximum of structural strength and compact
volume. Steel is uniform in quc|ity, and
reduces the possibility of human error to

a minimum.

[Hlustrations show

typical examples of .
structural  steel con-
struction.

Dominion Bridge Com-

pany maintains complete
engineering and plant
facilities across Canada
to erect and produce
practically every type of
stationary and movable

steel structure.

DOMINION BRIDGE COMPANY
LIMITED

Brunches:
OTTAWA TORONTO (2) WINNIPEG HEAD OFFICE AND WORKS
CALGARY VANCOUVER (2) LACHINE (Montreal), Que.
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CONTRACTORS

THE JACKSON-LEWIS CO.

LIMITED

General Contractors

HEAD OFFICE — FEDERAL BUILDING TORONTO

E. G. M. CAPE AND COMPANY

Engineers and Contractors

NEW BIRKS BUILDING MONTREAL

NORTHERN CONSTRUCTION CO.

AND

J. W. STEWART LIMITED

Engineers and Contractors

MONTREAL TORONTO VANCOUVER

BIRD, WOODALL & SIMPSON

LIMITED

Contractors and Engineers

REGINA MOOSE JAW

THE FRID CONSTRUCTION CO.

LIMITED

General Contractors

128 KING ST. EAST HAMILTON, ONT.
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SULLIVAN & FRIED

LIMITED

General Contractors

81 VICTORIA STREET TORONTO

JOSEPH WILDE & CO., LIMITED

General Contractors

1006 C.P.R. BUILDING TORONTO

ANGLIN-NORCROSS

CORPORATION, LIMITED

Contracting Engincers and Builders

MONTREAL TORONTO
COOK & LEITCH
General Contractors
1440 ST. CATHERINE ST. WEST MONTREAL

A. W. ROBERTSON LIMITED

Contractors and Builders

FOOT OF SPADINA AVE., TORONTO 2, ONTARIO
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Specify any or all of the following
types of Northern Wires in your home

MNOREL-A.B.C. arm-
oured bushed cable

P //////W/W ' :OREL -X non-met-
‘a »

e "//,’i////f 5 . 3 allic sheathed cable

Northern Electric Co.
Mational Electrical
Code Rubber Cov-
ered Wires & Cables

Northern Electric Co.
Mational Electrical
. - = Coda Lamp Cord,

s ‘S\ : E@ W _ _l_l e Fixture Wire, efc
TS ._D..,f - * | N
e AL
: it

moDberRN House Wiring

. Northern wires and cables are fully approved by the H.E.P.C. and the
National Electrical Code. Consult our nearest branch for complete details

Northern @ Flecrric

COMPANY LIMITED A——
— =7 === /\ NATIONAL ELECTRICAL SERVICE

STJOHN N.B. HALIFAX QUEBEC MONTREAL OTTAWA TORONTO HAMILTON LONDON WINDSOR NEW LISKEARD SUDBURY WINNIPEG REGINA CALGARY EDMONTON VANCOUVER
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iy " o e ' | oo NORTH AMERICAN LiFE
ASSUR# . i il _ B RANCE COMPANY

8

MAIN ENTRANCE DOORS
HEAD OFFICE BUILDING, NORTH AMERICAN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY, TORONTO

Marani, Lawson e Morris, drchitects

The base course, architrave and reveals are dark Swedish green grande. Al the metal work i bronze.
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HEAD OFFICE BUILDING
NORTH AMERICAN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY, TORONTO

Marani, Lawsan eF Morric, drchitects

The stone ir Queenston Limestone with the flat rurfaces bush-hammered. The spandrels between the third and fifth floors
are grey-green soapstone, The ground floor windows are bronze, all the rexl are hollow metal, painted slone colour.
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ROTUNDA
HEAD OFFICE BUILDING, NORTH AMERICAN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY, TORONTO

Marane, Lawson 5 Horris, drehitects

The walls are Loredo Chiaro marble, pilasters are cobweb vein black and gold marble, the base Belgium black, the floor traver-
fene with a marble mosaic pattern. The lamp standards are bronze with alabasier bowlr.

The Journal, Royal Architectural Institute of Canada Page 4



BOARD ROOM
HEAD OFFICE BUILDING, NORTH AMERICAN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY, TORONTO

Marani, Lawson ef Morriv, drehitects

The panelling te made up of English walnul panelr and dmerican black walnut trim. The ceiling is Rockowstile.
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THE GENERAL MANAGER’S OFFICE
HEAD OFFICE BUILDING, NORTH AMERICAN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY, TORONTO

Marant, Lawron ¢f Morres, Arehitects

The walls are pale yellow, patnted on wood. The marble fascia of fireplace is St. Genevieve agolden vein.  The carpet and
hangings are in tones of soft blue-green.

The Journal, Royal drchitectural Institute of Canada Page 6



COLOURED NUDE

By Dorothy Stevens

THE EXHIBITION OF
THE ROYAL CANADIAN ACADEMY

BY L. A. C. PANTON, P.O.S.A.

O those who regard Canadian Art as a

reflection of Canada’s ideals and circum-

stances, the Annual Exhibition in Toronto

of the Royal Canadian Academy presents
interesting material for reflection. Though the
national mind is preoccupied by economic dis-
turbances and the human significance of current
history, its artistic expression is effected in the
lyrical and poetical, in the landscape, the portrait
and the decoration. In no exhibition of recent
years has academic hospitality been so generous,
the representation of Canadian artists from the
extremities of the Dominion been so wide, or
presented so many and marked contrasts of feeling

Page 7

and technique. Few of the better known painters
are absent from the walls, and the styles and
manners of expression range from one extreme to
the other, providing a cross-section of Canadian
art such as is seldom seen.

The field of portraiture, unusually large this
year, is headed by President E. Wyly Grier,
among whose three works is a thoroughly charac-
teristic “Lt.-Col. Wm. C. Michell” easily posed,
vigourously brushed, well balanced, with marked
atmospheric relief, particularly at the head. In
the same tradition are Kenneth Forbes” “The Polo
Player,” a work of extreme technical competence
and skilfully managed detail; the portrait of “J. E.

January, 1933



McAllister, Esq.,” by a newcomer to Toronto,
Evan Macdonald, whose work is broad and steady;
Ernest Fosbery’s striking silhouette of “P. B.
Ross, LL.D.;” and Archibald Barnes’ ““Miss Meyers,”
of smooth texture and brilliant colour. Miss Marion
Long makes a charming contribution in the portrait
of “Miss Constance Burns,” very broadly treated

well disposed, the portrait element does not obtrude
unduly, and is well combined with the landscape
of the St. Lawrence shores, hills and villages. His
“Nude” is a powerfully and directly painted study
of a girl, brilliant and vital in colour, original in
pose, the simplicity and joyous feeling marred
only by the insistent folds of the lower drapery.

BENEDICTA
By Randolph 8. Hewlon, A.R.C.A.

in the conventional manner, and rich in a subdued
harmony of greens and browns.

The works of R. S. Hewton are remarkable, not
only in themselves, but as an indication of the
artist’s tremendous versatility and courage. In
his “Benedicta” is a fine fresh feeling for decoration,
happily united to realism, a movement and vigour
of design and handling that yet is carefully related
to the subject. The lines of the composition are

The Journal, Royal Architectural Institute of Canada

In the same spirit is his landscape, in high key and
solid colour, in which a number of differently hued
dwellings typical of Quebec huddle under the
shelter of the towering village church, as if for
protection against the snowy desolation of withered
trees and bare hills.

From Montreal also comes the work of Lillias
Newton, a psychological study in which a pro-
nounced triangular motif, strong contrasts of dark
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and light, a sombreness of colour and the descriptive
landscape behind, converge to present “André
Illiashenko” in a small but impressive canvas. As
a marked contrast in the manner of technical
treatment — though not in the matter of analysis of
the subject, is Charles Comfort’s ““John H. Creigh-
ton, Esq.,” in which is evidenced a ruthless elimina-

Pioneer” depicting his subjects with his always
fresh and sympathetic insight; and a characteris-
tically bold “Thaw in March, Arthabaska,” broad
in brushwork, simply composed, but of a soft and
atmospheric quality unusual in modern Canadian
pictures of winter. Small, but easily recognizable
as the work of the leader of painters of Canadian

PORTRAIT OF MISS CONSTANCE BURNS
By Marion Long, A.R.C.d.

tion of unimportant detail, a moulding of all its
elements into fine design. The hands and lips are
sensitively drawn, and the daring introduction of a
brilliant yellow book-jacket emphasizes skilfully
the appropriate sombre colour and the gravity of
the sitter,

Suzor Cote, in the forefront of Canadian painter-
students of Habitant life, is represented again by
“French Canadian Peasant” and “Son of the

Page 9

history, is Chas. W. Jefferys’ “Wolfe Viewing the
Departure of Troops from Louisbourg for the
Capture of Quebec,” in which essential accuracy of
detail in nowise interferes with the breadth of
design, and the suggestive sparkle of its colour.
While portraiture and landscape predominate in
exhibitions of Canadian art, there is reason to
hope that the works of Canadian genre, now all too
rare, will increase in number and importance. It is

January, 1953



BROKEN ICE
By Charles W. Simpron, R.C.A.

MORNING LIGHT, PEGGY'S COVE, N.S.
By Stanley Royle

The Journal, Royal Architectural Institute of Canada Page 10



curious also that of the few outstanding examples of
figure painting other than portraits, two are based
on tropical subjects. Dorothy Stevens exhibits an
ability for the management of pattern and colour
in an amazing synthesis “Coloured Nude.” The
figure is dexterously and broadly painted with a
calculated and subdued realism aptly in accord
with a well-planned pattern of palms, against the
greens of which the rich dark reds and purples of
the nude stand in graceful silhouette. “Nosa
Women Washing” by Will Ogilvie is sumptuous in
its pattern of Venetian reds and dark warm greens,
its two figures kneeling at the stream, a rhythmic
scheme of severe simplicity.

work has a sense of quiet movement and ‘a subtle
but surprising quality of light, its buildings one
with the earth on which they stand, the low brood-
ing sky unfortunately lost in the colour of the
wall behind.

That the waking of the Spring may be told in
marine painting as well as in the landscape is
admirably proved by Charles Simpson’s “Broken
Ice,” with its light pure jewel-like colour and the
rippling reflections of the well-placed boats.
Canada's extensive sea-coast is a motif which
deserves to share more largely the attention given
to landscape, and which is capably handled in
Horne Russell’'s “Point Lepreaux, N.B.,” realis-

GOAT RANGE, ROCKIES
By J. I, H. Macdonald, R.C.A.

In exhibiting three mountain studies by J. E. H.
Macdonald, the academy does honour to itself,
and unexpectedly erects a monument of sad and
affectionate tribute to the dean of landscape
painters in Canada. The very soul of the man, in
all its exquisite and simple reverence for Canada’s
landscape, is stamped unfadingly on these last of
his works; three small works whose poetry raises
them far above their larger and more pretentious
neighbours. These are the works of an artist, at
the peak of his powers, whose skill kept pace with
his convictions, who in life enriched Canada by the
purest art, and whose untimely death leaves
Canadian art immeasurably poorer.

A. Y. Jackson, co-worker with J. E. H. Mac-
donald, exhibits in “Grey day, Laurentians” his
fascination for the typical Quebec landscape. The

Page 11

tically depicting the violent boiling of surf. From
the coast comes the work of Stanley Royle, already
having an English reputation. “Evening Light”
and “Morning Light,” both at Peggy’s Cove, are
simple in design, and examples of a sincere tech-
nique and respect for surface qualities that are
found also in Miss Elizabeth Nutt's “A Moorland
Stream,” a pattern of lights splashed onto a
shadowed stream.

Of bolder and more definite design and treatment,
and robust colour, is “Brook Falls, Magnetawan
River,” in which very difficult passages of dark
colour, and the swirl of water, are handled with the
accustomed certainty of J. W. Beatty. George
Pepper, in “Blue Rocks, N.S.,” presents an atmos-
phere redolent of the ordered confusion of fisher-
men’s equipment.

January, 1933



In Fred S. Haines’ interpretation of “Winter,
Mary Lake,” the artist combines a fine fluency in
the design of gently flowing verticals and horizon-
tals with a reserved realism of form and colour,
that express in a typically personal way the charac-
teristic winter mood.

Sydney Hallam’s “October” is a strong, active
outdoor study of fine colour and tonal contrasts.
“The Brink of the Falls, Georgian Bay,” the only
canvas by Arthur Lismer, solves an extremely diffi-
cult problem of perspective, the diminishing interest
of its receding planes appropriate to the slowing up
of the water as it enters the lake: and George A.
Reid’s “Ottawa Valley, Road Builders” and
Frederick Challener’s “Making the Trans-Canada
Highway' ably perpetuate in paint that epic of
road-making.

The Academy Exhibition includes a notably large
number of water-colours, a reflection of the awaken-
ing interest in this medium. A. J. Casson makes of
“Old Farmhouse near Maple” an opportunity for
studied simplicity and delightful fluid colour. The
work 1s conspicuous for the effect of soft light
attained without the usual recourse to strong con-
trasts, and a definite well-marked pattern well dis-
tributed. While not perhaps the finest he has
produced, the water-colours by Frederick G. Cross,
of Alberta, show a brilliance and appreciation of
the qualities of water colour. Mr. Cross, although

new to Canadian exhibitions, is already a master,
and exhibits a profound sympathy with Western
landscape, and his studies of prairie skies are
remarkable for an intense atmosphere of light and
heat. The charm of the direct washes of colour on
white paper is found in “Karlukwees, B.C.” by
Walter Phillips, in which the angularity of the
interesting composition well suggests the primitive-
ness of the people themselves. Joachim Gauthier’s
study of “March” is well conceived as a pattern
and ably handled; Mrs. D. M. Bagley’s “Lauren-
tian Rapids’ is direct and fresh; Paul Alfred’s
“Gatineau Woodland” is a pleasing union of reds
and blues, and George H. Griffin’'s “Matapedia
Valley” is broadly treated in greys.

Among the sculpture is Emanuel Hahn’s mys-
terious “Madame X in Mood Y;” a strikingly
realistic portrait bust of the Academy Secretary,
Edmond Dyonnet, by Geo. W. Hill, and charac-
teristically fine pieces by Florence Wyle and
Frances Loring. A number of etchings and drawings
complete a well-balanced exhibition.

Toronto is fortunate in being selected as one of
the three centres in which the Academy places its
annual exhibitions. With its 269 exhibits of paint-
ing, drawings, etchings and sculpture, the 1932
showing has adequately maintained standards, and
demonstrated completely that Canadian Art moves
on from strength to strength.

The Journal, Royal Architectural Institute of Canada
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VIEW FROM THE NORTH-WEST BEFORE RESTORATION

THE OLD PRESBYTERY AT BATISCAN

RAMSAY TRAQUAIR, M.A. (HON.), F.R.I.B.A., AND G. A. NEILSON

HE Seigniory of Batiscan is situated on
the north shore of the St. Lawrence twenty
miles east of the town of Three Rivers.
It was granted to the Jesuit Fathers, “pour
I'amour de Dieu,” on the 13th of March, 1639, by
Jacques de la Ferté, Abbé de Ste. Madeleine de
Chéateaudun, in the name of the Company of the
Hundred Associates.! Although it remained Jesuit
property up to the time of the dissolution of the
Order in Canada, none of the Jesuits ever appear
to have lived there. They built the usual mill and
collected the seigneurial rents amounting, according
to a Declaration of Revenue made by the Order
to the King of France in 1701, to 300 li. a year,
but that was all.?
() B. Sulte, Hist. des Canadiens Frangais Vol. I, p. 69,

(%) Jesuit Relations and allied Documents, ed. K. G. Thwaites, Vol.
LXV., p. 183,

Page 15

There is no evidence to show that the Jesuits
ever built a house on the site of the old presbytery
in the XVII century. Had they done so it would
have been used by the missionaries on their visits
to the parish. Yet in the Procés-verbal of the
General Assembly of the parishioners who met to
elect the first churchwardens (marguilliers) of the
parish in 1670, it is definitely stated that “M.
Morin, prestre Missionnaire, y exercoit les fonctions
curiales au logis di Sr. Nicholas Rivard de la
Vigne, Lientenans de la Milice aud Batiscan.”?
This statement makes it clear that at that date
there was no presbytery in the parish.

In 1674 Pére Louis Nicolas de la Compagnie de
Jesus, in the name of his Superior, Pére Claude
Dablon, sold to the “noble homme Messre Germain

(*) Livres de Comptes de Batiscan, Vol. L.
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THE SOUTH SIDE BEFORE RESTORATION

Photo R. T, 1929

THE SOUTH SIDE AFTER RESTORATION

January, 1933
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Morin prestre faisan fonction de Curé en la paroisse
de batiscan un emplacement ou est apresen sise et
sittuée Leglise paroissialles dud lieu de Batiscan
de la consistance de cem quatre ving pieds de long y
compri la place ou est batie la ditte Eglise,”!
This deed of sale, which was drawn up by Jean
Cusson, Notary at the Cap de la Madeleine, men-
tions no buildings excepting the church, though
such deeds customarily enumerate carefully all
buildings on the land.

Some years later, in 1706, a Mr. Roy, who was
then Curé of Batiscan, gave a part of the property
“sur laquelle est situé 'eglise et le terrain de la
Cure,” to the Sisters of the Congregation of Notre
Dame de Villemarie on condition that they opened
a school for girls on the property.?

When M. Chartier de Lotbiniére, the Grand
Vicar of the Bishop of Quebec, visited the parish
in the month of March, 1734, he found that the
“presbitaire étoit prest de tomber en ruine.”? He
appointed two of the parishioners, Jean Montgrin
and Pierre Gouin, as commissioners to examine the
building and have it repaired. But it appears that
nothing was done and on the 23rd of July of the
same year the Intendant Hocquart issued an
ordonnance replacing Pierre Gouin by the S. Duclos
de Carignant and ordering the commissioners to
begin work immediately. This document is of first
importance in the history of the building.* It
states that the preshytery was built in 1696 by the
Sr. Foucault, Curé of the parish, at his own expense.
At the date of the ordonnance, in 1734, the building
threatened to fall down since the beams of the
cellar were decayed by the floods which often rose
into the building. The beams of the first floor were
also much damaged by the rain which was destroy-
ing all the interior of the house. The roof was quite
spoilt and unable to resist the weather. The north-
cast gable was beginning to fall, the masonry of
that side threatened ruin which would soon involve
the rest of the building and render it incapable of
repair, thus causing a much greater expense to the
parishioners.

The building was, in fact, in very bad state, but
not yet impossible to repair. The architectural

(") Archives de I'Evéché des Trois Riviéres, Cartable de St. Frs, X, de
Batiscan, pitéce No. 1.

(%) Livres de Comptes de Batiscan, Vol. I, f. 54a.

(*) Livres de Comptes de Batiscan, Vol. I, {. 16a.

(*) Archives de I'Evéché des Trois Riviéres. Cartable de St. Frs. X,
de Batiscan, pitce No. 3. An excerpt of the important passage follows:
“Vu la request a nous présentée par le Sr. frangois Richard Prestre Mission-
naire de Batiscan soutenant que le Se. foucault ¢y devant curé de lad
Paroisse de Batiscan auroit faire construire en 1696 un Presbytere de pierre
aud Lieu a ses frais et depens sans que les habitants y ayent fourny un sol
de leur argent. Lequel Presbytere auvjiourdhuy menaceroit ruine par les
poutres de la Cave que les eaux qui sont souvent montés dans led Bitiment
aurcient pouries; Que les Poutres d'enhaut seroient aussy tres endom-
magées dont une entitrement sortie de la Muraille par les pluyes qui
pourissent tous les dedans de lad maison, La Couverture estant entidre-
ment ghté et hors d'Etat de resister aux injures du temps; que les Pignons
du Nord Est commenceroient a tomber. La muraille dud costé menagant
ruine, ce qui entraisneroit bientot le reste du Batiment, le mettroit hors
d’estat de pouvoir estre relevé; et causeroit par consequent une depense
bien plus considérable aux habitants de lade Parcisse . . ."”
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evidence shows that the necessary repairs were
carried out, the building was at any rate rendered
safe and in the Aveu et Denombrement des terrains
des Péres Jésuites en Canada in 1781, it is stated
that on the “Fief and Seignory of Batiscan there is a
mill newly built and not yet finished; also a church
and clergy house on a lot of land two arpents in
superficies for the use of the Curé.”’

The parish accounts contain no further entries
regarding work done to the presbytery until 1835,
when the Bishop of Quebec on his visit to the parish
mentions as being completed “quelques ouvrages
extérieures de 'Eglise et du presbytére.”®

These were probably a part of the repairs of
which Mr. Loranger, Curé¢ of Champlain, writes in
a letter to the Bishop in December, 1835, in connec-
tion with Batiscan, “M. Guillet qui conduit le
tout, m’assure que le Presbitere, 'Etable et les
choses actuellement nécessaires seront prétes lors de
I'arrivée du nouveau Curé.”” It would appear that
for many years there had only been one Curé for
the two parishes of Batiscan and Champlain. In
1834 the parishioners of Batiscan had written to
the Bishop asking him to give them a resident priest
and stating that for the past twenty-five years there
had only been one Curé for the two parishes and
that this Curé had always lived in Champlain.

This explains the extensive repairs that had to
be made; the old building had probably been
uninhabited for twenty-five years.

At a meeting of the churchwardens on the 13th
of March, 1836, it was agreed that, in view of the
necessity of making repairs to the presbytery, both
interior and exterior, there should be taken from
the strong box of the fabrique and placed in the
hands of the Curé and churchwardens the further
sum of twenty-five livres for these repairs.?

Apparently there was some doubt as to what
repairs were really needed, for the Bishop a few days
later ordered M. Coté, Curé of Ste. Genevieve, to go
and examine the presbytery at Batiscan. In his
report, made on the 13th of April, M. Coté writes,
“J'ai examiné les ouvrages et réparations a faire et
les ai jugés absolument nécessaires et pour le
logement de Mr. le Curé et pour la conservation du
presbytére méme. La requéte fait connaitre a
votre Grandeur quelles sont ces réparations réelle-
ment nécessaires.””? Unfortunately this “requéfte”
has not been found; it would apparently have given
us a detailed account of the work, but we may con-
clude that the repairs were considerable or they
would not have required so much consideration.

(%) Jesuit Relations, Vol. LXXI, p. 81-82,

(%) Livres de Comptes de Batiscan, Vol. 11, part I, f. 148 a and b.

(") Archives de I'Evéché des Trois Rivitres, Cartable de St. Frs, X, de
Batiscan, piece No. 25.

(8) Archives de 'Evéché des Trois Riviéres, Cartable de St. Frs. X, de
Batiscan, pigce No. 17.

(") Livres de Comptes de Batiscan, Vol, II, Part I, £, 149a,

(10} Archives de 'Evéché des Trois Rividres, Cartable de St. Frs. X. de
Batiscan, pitce No. 31.
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A WINDOW IN THE OLD PRESBYTERY AT BATISCAN
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In 1845 the Bishop again called the attenticn of
the churchwardens to the need of making certain
repairs to the presbytery.!

Finally, at a general meeting of the parishioners
in 1855, it was decided that all repairs to the
presbytery should be completed in the following
summer and that in addition an extension kitchen
should be added to the old house. One hundred
pounds were spent on the building in that year.?

In 1865-66 a new church and presbytery were
built about a mile to the east of the old church
which was then disaffected. It fell into ruin and
now there is no trace of it left, though a fine carved
altar from it, by Levasseur in 1741, is preserved
in the sacristy of the new church. The Curé moved
into a new presbytery beside the new church and
the old presbytery became a farm house. Whilst in
this occupation it does not seem to have been
seriously altered and finally in 1926 it was carefully
restored for use as a summer house by Mr. A. R.
Decary, in whose possession it still remains.?

11

The presbytery is a rectangular building, 56
feet 9 inches long by 35 feet 3 inches broad, in one
storey, with an attic. Tt has rubble walls of field
stone, about two feet eight inches thick. Under part
of the floor is a low cellar with an earth floor and
in the roof is a large loft, in the parts not occupied
by the attic rooms. The roof is about fifty degrees
pitch, with verges, twelve inches deep, at the
gable ends. These gables were carried up in stone;
that at the west end still is, but the east gable has
had to be taken down to wall head level owing to
its dangerous condition, and today the gable is
only carried up in wood. It will be remembered
that this is the gable that was threatening to fall
in 1734. Old photographs show that it was sheathed
in wood, a common practice to give protection
against the northerly storms in winter. The
chimneys have been restored. Originally there
were three, as at present, but at some time the two
in the gables were disused and the photographs
before restoration show only one, in the middle of
the building.

The house is divided into six bays by five beams
of pine wood, eight inches thick and ten inches deep,
with a moulding on the exposed edges. These
beams run from wall to wall, a span of over 30 feet
and support a solid floor, three and a quarter
inches thick, formed of two layers of boards laid
crosswise, the under boards forming the ceiling.
The two bays to the east are about two feet broader
than the others. Originally these bays formed a
parish hall with a separate door to the outside, in
the south side of the end bay, the dwelling house
occupying the western part of the building. The
[ Livren s Cbmptes:deBatibcan; Vol 1T partil, £ 0aani'h,

(*} Livres de Comptes de Batiscan, Vol. IT, part 11, f. 16b.

" (1) Care has been taken to preserve the original spelling on the excerpts
from old documents,
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plan is quite regular; the third bay from the east
contains the two entrance doors, to front and back,
the remaining bays each have a window on each
side. This arrangement of bays and beams support-
ing a solid floor is an essential part of the structure
and could not have been the result of alterations.
Similar beams and floors are to be found in the
Ferme St. Gabriel, at Pointe St. Charles, Montreal,
of the end of the XVII century and in the older
parts of the Hopital Général at Quebec, of the
early XVIII century. At Batiscan it is evident that
the walls and beams at any rate belong to the house
built in 1696 and repaired, but not rebuilt, in 1734.

This floor construction is old and good. Tt is
strong, economical and very soundproof. It must
be more fire-resisting than the modern floor of
small joists, it takes up little room and looks
extremely well.  The spans of the three and a
quarter inch floor vary from seven to nine feet,
vet the floors are quite stiff, though the beams
have sagged somewhat with time.

This sagging is worth a little notice. The three
beams in the west, or house division, have sagged
from two inches to three and three-quarter inches
in the centre. The remaining two beams, one in
the partition and the other over the old parish hall,
where there were no rooms above, have only sagged
about half an inch. The internal partitions are of
inch and a quarter boards and would sustain a very
considerable weight without being distorted. They
and the doors in them show no signs of any dis-
tortion or strain, but have been carefully fitted to
the curve of the beams. It is quite evident that
they have been put in after the sag had had time
to develop, that is, at some time after the original
building was finished.

The roof cannot, of course, be the original roof,
but it is framed in the old manner with six by eight
inch posts, five by four inch rafters and diagonal
wind bracing. The rafters rest on double wall
plates, one on each side of the wall, connected
at intervals by dovetailed cross pieces all out of
seven inch square wood. The roof is in ten bays
which bear no relation to the bays below. It hasa
moderate bellcast and eaves projecting twenty-
six inches. Roofs continued to be framed in this
manner until the middle of the nineteenth century
and there is no reason to think that this roof is
more than a hundred years old at most.

A number of the old window frames and sashes
remain, glazed with the old thin glass. The windows
have two casements with twelve panes in each,
opening inwards. The frames are of wood, with
wooden architraves and sills and double, panelled
shutters. There is no cut stone in the building.
The character of the architrave and other window
mouldings indicate a date in the first half of the
XIX century. They probably belong to the repairs
executed in 1855.
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In the interior the stone walls are plastered
direct and the ceilings and partitions are of pine,
unpainted and darkened by age to a beautiful warm
brown. The partitions on the ground floor are of
boards an inch and a quarter thick, grooved and
tongued and finished with a small bead. The boards
are alternately grooved on both edges or tongued
and beaded, not, as is the modern practice, grooved
on one edge and tongued on the other. The doors
are six panelled with L-shaped wrought iron hinges
and exposed brass latches. The architraves have
floor blocks and cornices. The character of the
mouldings as well as the pattern of the panelling
is early XIXth century. The iron work might be
earlier, both hinges and latches are of a pattern
in use in the later XVIIIth century, but such
old-fashioned patterns continued in use in Quebec
long after they had gone out elsewhere.

The partitions on the upper floor are of two
varieties. Between the rooms marked 1 and 3 on
the plan is a partition showing long wainscot panels
to room No. 1, but plastered on the other. It is of
inch and three-quarter boards grooved and tongued;
the construction is shown on the drawing. Between
the other rooms the partitions are designed to show
wood wainscot on both sides. They are of inch and
eighth boards, grooved and moulded, fitted together
so that a panel on one side corresponds to a style
on the other. At the floor is a shallow moulded
base, at chair height a dado mould and at the
ceiling a small concave cornice. The long upright
strips formed by the boards are filled in at base,
cornice and dado with thin cross pieces so as to
form panels, with styles as broad as the panels and
of quite irregular sizes.

The walls, ceilings and the cove of the roof are
all covered with such wainscoting. It seems to have
been in fairly common use in the province from the
later years of the XVIIIth century. It is used in
the Fargues House, 92 St. Peter Street, Quebec,
as wall panelling and is a usual treatment for
wooden ceilings. The double form, with panels
on both sides, is very ingenious.

The stair rises from a corner of the living-room
with a turn of three steps and reaches the upper
floor in eleven steps of eight and three-quarter
inches rise by seven and a half tread, with one
square baluster, set diagonally, on each step. The
steps have a cut stringer and shaped brackets and
on the turn at the bottom is a tapered octagonal
newel. The partition above, between the staircase
and the front bedroom, is left open at the top and
at the end of the stair opening is a curious little
balcony entered from the bedroom. These openings
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were probably in part intended to allow the warm
air from the living-room to reach the bedroom.
The stair is very charming. It is simple and direct
and, in spite of its extreme steepness, not at all
uncomfortable.

Underneath the stair is a stove opening, now
boarded up, evidently meant to communicate with
the kitchen stove, and beside it is a door glazed in
the upper part. Glazed doors seem to have been
usual in Quebec houses and were sometimes quite
elaborately shaped and moulded.

A careful examination of this very interesting
woodwork and of its mouldings leaves not the
slightest doubt that it was all executed during the
first half of the nineteenth century. For confirma-
tion of this we may turn to a house in the village
of Batiscan, now used as a telephone exchange and
belonging to Mlle. Machildon. This house was
built by the great-grandfather of the present owner,
Thomas Machildon, and must therefore be about
one hundred years old.

The house is wood-framed and its internal parti-
tions and doors are identical with those of the
presbytery. The staircase is of the same character
with winding steps, cut strings and shaped brackets.
The woodwork must be of about the same age as
that of the presbytery; it looks as if it had been
made by the same man. Now at the presbytery
alterations and repairs were going on from 1836
to 1845 and again in 1855, when the extension
kitchen was added. This feature can be seen on the
old photographs and was of very rough workman-
ship. The present porch and door to the river
are of much heavier and coarser workmanship and
moulding than the interior woodwork and were
probably made after it.

The history of the building seems quite clear.
The walls and beams date from 1696, though they
were repaired in 1734 and may in part be of that
date. Thereafter the building was neglected until
1835, when it was thoroughly restored and reno-
vated to receive a resident curé. The present
internal woodwork dates from that restoration.
Further work was done in 1855 when the kitchen
was added and the porch placed on the river front,
which at that time faced the old high road.

Since then little or nothing was done to the
building until 1926, when it was restored by Mr.
Decary. Of his work it is only necessary to say that
it shows a love of the old building and a respect
for its traditions. The old presbytery at Batiscan
is one of the most perfect and most interesting of
our small houses and it is fortunate in having fallen
into such good hands.
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ACTIVITIES OF

A meeting of the executive committee of the council of the
Roval Architectural Institute of Canada was held at the office
of the Institute, 74 King Street East, Toronto, on Wednesday,
December 7th, 1932, at 2.00 p.m.

Present: Messrs, Gordon M., West, president; W. S. Max-
well, honorary treasurer; W. L. Somerville; Jas. H. Craig,
Forsey P. Page; B. Evan Parry; Herbert E. Moore, and 1.
Markus, secretary.

Reports of Standing Commitlees:

Architectural Training: Mr. Maxwell advised the meeting
that the recognized schools of architecture had been invited to
take part in the R.A.L.C. student competitions to be held in
the early part of 1933, and that the programmes for the two
competitions were now being prepared by Mr. A. §. Mathers
of Toronto, for which prizes amounting to one hundred and

fifty dollars are to be awarded.

Art, Science and Research: Mr. Parry reported that he
had represented the Institute on the committee appointed
by the Canadian Engineering Standards Association to con-
sider the standardization of colours for piping systems, and
that a draft of a document had been prepared recommending
the adoption of certain identifying colours for pipes used for
specific purposes, in connection with which a number of

changes suggested by him had been adopted.

Exhibitions and Awards: In the absence of Mr. Hynes,
the secretary presented the report of the jury of award ap-
pointed to judge the photographs of buildings submitted in
the recent R.A.T.C. Exhibition. The report stated that after
giving careful consideration to the 106 photographs of 59
buildings entered by 31 exhibitors, the jury had awarded the
Gold Medal to Messrs. Barott and Blackader, Montreal, for
the Bank of Montreal Building at Ottawa, and that other
awards had been made in the following classes: Public Build-
ings, Ecclesiastical Buildings, Educational Buildings, and
Residential Buildings. The jury recommended that a bronze
medal be awarded to Mr. Ernest Cormier for his residence in
recognition of the skilful manner in which the problem was
handled and of the personal and original character of the
design. The jury’s report met with the approval of the
executive committee, and the secretary was instructed to have
the medals for Messrs. Barott and Blackader and Ernest

Cormier ready for presentation at the annual meeting.

Proposed Standard Form of Tender: Mr. Somerville reported
that a proposed standard form of tender had been considered
at a meeting of the Joint Committee of the R.A.L.C. and
C.C.A. held on November 21st, and that the committee had
agreed on a final draft to be submitted to the executive com-
mittees of the R.A.LC. and C.C.A. for approval. After a
number of changes had been made in the draft, the proposed
form of tender was approved as revised.

National Committee on Construction Recovery: Mr. Craig
reported that a number of meetings of this special committee
had been held during the past few weeks and that it had now

been enlarged to include representatives from a number of
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national organizations interested in the construction industry.
He further advised the meeting that a conference of repre-
sentatives of the component parts of the construction industry
was contemplated in the near future.

Duty on Plans: A letter was read from Mr. R. W. Breadner,
commissioner of customs, advising the Institute of the changes
made in the valuation for duty purposes of archtiects’ plans
imported into Canada, as outlined in Appraiser’s Bulletin
No. 3966. The president stated that the new ruling issued
by the Department of Customs and Excise was very gratify-
ing, inasmuch as it represented the culmination of four years
of effort on the part of the Institute to have the basis of value
for duty purposes raised from 29 to 3% of the estimated
cost of the building, and the requiring of an affidavit to be
filed with the Customs Department establishing the final cost
of the completed building for final appraisal. The meeting
expressed its gratification at the results obtained, and on
motion duly moved and seconded, extended its sincere appre-
ciation to all those who were in any way responsible for
bringing about the changes in the customs regulations,
especially to Messrs. J. P. Hynes and P. E. Nobbs, past
presidents of the Institute, and Mr. E. L. Horwood of
Ottawa.

Employment of private architects on Public Works, execution
of private work by official archilects, and slatus of employed
architects: Mr. Parry advised the meeting that he had com-
municated with the members of his committee requesting
them to submit their views as to the line of procedure
which may be followed in the investigations to be
carried out.

Programme for next annual meeling: Mr. Somerville reported
that a meeting of the committee of arrangements had been
held at which it had been suggested that the annual meeting
of the Institute be held at the King Edward Hotel on the
dates originally arranged, namely February 17th and 18th,
1933. This was approved by the meeting.

It was the feeling of the meeting that the expenses of the
annual meeting should be curtailed as much as possible.

The secretary advised that the following recognized schools
of architecture had accepted the invitation to send a repre-
sentative to the next annual meeting of the Institute: McGill
University, Montreal; Ecole des Beaux Arts, Montreal and
Quebec, and the University of Toronto.

Tercentenary of the birth of Sir Christopher Wren: The presi-
dent reported that Dr. John A. Pearson had represented the
Institute at the Tercentenary of the birth of Sir Christopher
Wren, in connection with which he had laid a wreath during
the Memorial Service at St. Paul’s Cathedral in the name of
the architects of the Dominion of Canada. The president
was requested to convey to Dr. Pearson the sincere apprecia-
tion of the council of the Institute for the valuable service he
had rendered in this connection.

Date and Place of Next HMeeting: 1t was decided to hold the
next meeting of the executive committee in Toronto on
Wednesday, January 18th, 1933, at 2.00 p.m.

Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 8.00 p.m.
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NOTES

Mr. Percy E. Nobbs (F), past-president of the Royal
Architectural Institute of Canada, left Montreal on December
22nd for an extended trip abroad.

£ #* = * B

Mr. J. Y. McCarter, of McCarter and Nairne, architects
of Vancouver, was re-elected president of the Architectural
Institute of British Columbia at the annual meeting of that
body held in Vancouver on December 7th, 1932,

% %

The next annual meeting of the Province of Quebec Associa-
tion of Architects will be held on Saturday, January 28th,
1933, at the Chateau Frontenac, Quebec.

E * # #*

Mr. Heliodore Laberge (#), architect of Quebec, who has
been away from his office for the past year through illness,
announces that he has re-opened his office at 140 rue St-Jean.
Mr. G. A. Poitras (J) of Quebec, will be associated with
Mr. Laberge in his practice.

* *® * &

Mr. L. C. Martin Baldwin (#/), architect of Toronto, has
recently been appointed temporary curator of the Art Gallery
of Toronto. Mr. Baldwin succeeds Mr. Fred S. Haines,
A.R.C.A., who has just been appointed principal of the Ontario
College of Art following the death of Mr, J. E. H. MacDonald.

# & #* £

The next annual meeting of the Manitoba Association of
Architects will be held in Winnipeg, Manitoba, on Monday,
January 16th, 1933.

& * # *

A Memorial Exhibition of the work of J. E. H. MacDonald,
R.C.A., 0.5.A., is being held this month at the Art Gallery of
Toronto.

* £ * *

Professor Ramsay Traquair of McGill University, delivered
an address on December 9th, 1932, over radio station CKAC,
Montreal, under the auspices of the McGill Graduate Society.
Professor Traquair in his talk traced the history of the old
architecture of the Province of Quebec.

Mr. Kenneth G. Rea (), architect of Montreal, left on

December 10th for an extended trip abroad.
* L3 ® *

Mr. Arthur H. Eadie (Jf), of Toronto, was the winner of
the Poster Competition announcing the Toronto Chapter
Architectural Exhibition. Thirty-nine designs were sub-
mitted in the competition which was judged by a jury com-
posed of Messrs. John M. Lyle and Murray Brown, architects,
and J. E. Sampson, artist. Ten of the most outstanding
designs will be exhibited at the forthcoming Toronto Chapter
Architectural Exhibition which will be held at the Art Gallery
of Toronto from February 4th to 28th, 1933.

¥ % %

Mr. W. L. Somerville (F), architect of Toronto is delivering
a series of three lectures at McMaster University, Hamilton,
on the Architectural Background of the Christian Church.
The first of the series of lectures was given on December 6th
and dealt with Byzantine and Early Christian Origins. The
second lecture which will be given on January 10th will cover
the Romanesque and Mediaeval periods, and the final lecture
of the series will be given on February 11th and will deal with
Renaissance, Gothic Revival and Modern.

* & #* *

The first part of the report of the sub-committee on Hos-
pital Construction and Equipment of the Canadian Hospital
Council appeared in the December issue of “Canadian
Hospital,” and will be continued in subsequent issues. Tt
may be of interest to mention that Mr. B. Evan Parry (F),
is the chairman of this committee.

* £ * #*

At the inaugural meeting of the ninety-ninth session of
the Royal Institute British Architects held on Monday,
November 7th, 1932, Dr. John A. Pearson, who was present
at the meeting, conveyed the greetings of the Royal Archi-
tectural Institute of Canada. In addressing the gathering,
Dr. Pearson suggested that it should be the incumbent of
the office of president of the R.I.B.A. during his term to
visit some of the Dominions Overseas.

'

COMPETITIONS

TOWN PLANNING COMPETITION
ANTWERP, BELGIUM

The council of La Societe Intercommunale de la rive
gauche de I’Escaut announces a competition for a scheme for
the replanning of the area situated on the bank of the river
opposite Antwerp. The schemes submitted will be judged
by a jury consisting of Dr. H. P. Berlage, The Hague; Mons.
H. Prost, Paris; Mons. le Baron Horta, Brussels; Mons.
Henry Van de Velde, Brussels; Mons. P. De Heem, Antwerp;
Mons. G. De Ridder, Antwerp; and Mons. J. de Bruey,
Antwerp.

A sum of 300,000 francs ($9,600.00) has been set aside for
prizes to be awarded as follows:

First Prize—100,000 francs ($3,200.00).
Two Prizes of 50,000 francs each ($1,600.00), and
Four Prizes of 25,000 francs each ($800.00).

Drawings must be submitted on or before May 31st, 1933.

The programme and necessary plans relating to the com-
petition may be obtained on application to the offices of the
Society, 26 Rue Arenburg, Antwerp, by sending a deposit of
twenty francs (65 cents) for the programme and 80 francs
(two dollars and fifty cents) for the plans.
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BOOKS REVIEWED

A HISTORY OF THE ENGLISH HOUSE. By Nathaniel
Lloyd. Published by the Architectural Press Limited,
Price $17.50.

This volume, in the preparation of which we understand
the author has given a great part of his life, is an exhaustive
and monumental work and contains a great deal of material,
both text and illustrations, on the history of the English
house. The author shows the development of the English
House from the primitive times to the Victorian period.

Following the general text, which has been arranged accord-
ing to centuries, there are 888 illustrations divided into
sections according to subjects under such headings as exteriors
and plans, external wall treatment, entrances, windows,
chimneys, interiors, internal wall treatment, ceilings, fire-
places, staircases, metalwork and wvarious details. The
illustrations are accompanied by descriptive captions and
have been arranged in such a way that the reader may note
the changes and developments of each particular feature
throughout its history.

The reviewer of this volume has no hesitation in recom-
mending this book to architects as a valuable reference work
on English domestic architecture.

The size of the book is 916” x 13”, and contains 487 pages,
including a very comprehensive index. I.M.

London.
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THE ROYAL ARCHITECTURAL INSTITUTE OF CANADA

P ——

TWENTY-SIXTH GENERAL ANNUAL MEETING

AT THE

KING EDWARD HOTEL, TORONTO, ONTARIO
ON FRIDAY AND SATURDAY, THE 17TH AND 18TH FEBRUARY, 1933

——

Programme
FRIDAY, THE 17TH FEBRUARY, 1933
9.30 A.M.—Registration of Members. Room 306, | (1) Architectural Trainin}g,
74 King Street East. | (Q;V\S::.h | SI._l_Maxwell (F), Chairman.
10.00 A.M.—Meeting of the Executive Committee of olarships, -
the Council. Room 306, 74 King Street East. Mr. E. R. Rolph (F), Chairman.
: : (3) Art, Science and Research,
11.00 A.M.—Meeting of the (1932) Council. Room M. B Evan Parry (F), Chairman.
306, 74 King Street East. (4) Professional Usages,
12.00 Noon—Inaugural session of the Twenty-Sixth Mr. Gordon .M‘ est (F), Chairman.
General Annual Meeting of the Royal Architec- (5) Public Relations, i
tural Institute of Canada. Yellow Room, King Mr. James H. Craig, Chairman.
Edward Hotel. (6) Editorial Board, Jc:urnall RiA1CE;
(a) Reading and adoption of the minutes of the Mr. J. P. Hynes (F), Chairman.
Twznly-?ifth General Annual Meeting of the (7) Joint Committee of R,A.I.C. ?”d CCA,
Royal Architectural Institute of Canada, held at Mr. W. L. Somerville (F), Chairman.
Montebello, (Lucerne-in-Quebec) on the 19th (8) Exhibitions and Awards,
and 20th February, 1939, Mr. J. P. Hynes (F), Chairman. :
(b) Business arising out of the minutes. (P Report of the Honorary Treasurer, including
(c) Report of the Council. mz Audllqrrs Report, Mr. W. S. Maxwell (F),
onorary Treasurer.
12.50 P.M.—Group photograph to be taken. | (g) Reports of the Election of Delegates from the
1.00 P.M.—Luncheon, Bangquet Hall, King Edward Component Societies to the (1933) Council of
Hotel. the Royal Architectural Institute of Canada. Mr.
2.30 P.M.—Business Session. Yellow Room, King Alcide ;haussé 2 Hc‘mcrdry Secretary.
Edward Hotel. 6.30 P.M.—Dinner and Meeting of the Fellows of the
(d) Discussion on the Report of the Council. R.A.L.C., Room 210, King Edward Hotel.
(e) Reports of the Standing Committees: 8.30 P.M.—Lecture at the Art Gallery of Toronto.
SATURDAY, THE 18TH FEBRUARY, 1933
10.00 A.M.—Business Session at the Art Gallery of (5) Appointment of Standing Committees.
Toronto. (6) Delegation of powers to Executive Com-
h) Unfinish i i ion. mittee.
Ei)) N!;vr;asbues?nxs-mess e (7) Authorization for the Honorary Treasurer
1.00 P.M.—Luncheon at the Art Gallery of Toronto. (s)top ,,Q‘;':;fr t::;te;%?:;s]\/\“ting_
Address by the Chairmen of the Toronto Chapter, | 9) Other business.
O.A.A [ )
ity = | 3.00 P.M.—Toronto Chapter Exhibition of Archi-
2.30 P.M.—Meeting of the (1933) Council. Art tecture and Allied Arts—Art Gallery of Toronto.
Gallery of Toronto. Exhibition of Drawings submitted in the R.A.LC.
(1) Election of Officers. Student Competitions—Art Gallery of Toronto.
EQ; Bp‘\;zrolntmcnt of the Executive Committee. 7.30 P.M.—Annual Dinner at the University Club,
u

get for 1933. University Avenue, Toronto.
(4) Appointment of an Auditor. ‘ Presentations.

COMMITTEE OF ARRANGEMENTS

Messrs. W. L. Somerville, Chairman; A. S. Mathers, Murray Brown, F. H. Marani, Gordon M. West, W. S. Maxwell,
James H. Craig, J. P. Hynes, Herbert E. Moore, Forsey P. Page, B. Evan Parry and Alcide Chaussé.

This programme is subject to change. Announcements of changes will be made at the business sessions.

627 Dorchester Street west’ GORDON M. WEST, President.
Montreal, January 3rd, 1933. ALCIDE CHAUSSE, Honorary Secretary.
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THE CHURCH

OF

ST. ANDREW AND ST. PAUL

MONTREAL, P.Q.
H. L. Fetherstonbaugh— Architect

STONE

Its rich, dignified beauty has caused it to be
used in many different types of building.

The Church of St. Andrew and St. Paul is
one of a number of buildings recently
erected at Montreal in which the cut
stone contract was cntrustcd O our carc.

Whatever exterior atmosphere the archi-
tect wishes to create, there is a stone
which will exactly meet his requirements.

R RITCHIE CUT STONE CO.
S e 159 BAY STREET == TORONTO

The Journal, Royal Adrchilectural Instdule of Canada Page viit



Showing open and closed
wiews of Door on
Security Vanle,

20 TONS OF STEEL

used in the construction of the

SECURITY VAULT
in the new building of the

NORTH AMERICAN LIFE
ASSURANCE CO.

including Main Vault Door as shown,
Emergency Door and Vault Lining.

Both doors are 10" thick, exclusive
of bolt-work and fittings and contain
heavy layers of torch resisting metal.

[ —

Designed, built and installed by

The GOLDIE & McCULLOCH

CO., LIMITED
Head Office and Works: GALT, ONT.

Branch Offices or Dealers in all leading Canadian Cities

A BOOK FOR EVERY ARCHITECT

ARCHITECTURAL (EAPHIC STANDARDS

By Charles G. Ramsey and Harold R. Sleeper

HIS book will prove invaluable to architects and draughtsmen because of its

ARCHITECTURAL

practicality and comprehensiveness. It contains 213 plates of details which
give in graphic form a great deal of information regarding types of construction and
dimensions of standard equipment used in different classes of buildings.

The variety of the subjects covered include such details as floor construction,
roof construction, various types of framing, doors and windows, fire places,
chimneys, etc., also a great deal of useful information giving sizes of tennis courts,
bowling alleys, hand ball courts, kitchen equipment, swimming pools, furniture, bath
room accessories, etc.

The book is indexed so that all information can be found easily, and it is sure
to find almost daily use in every architect’s office. It contains 233 pages, and is

914" x 1134” in size.

Price $6.50 - All charges prepaid.

PUBLICATIONS
74 KING STREET EAST - TORONTO, ONT.

Cheques payable to Architectural Publications Limited

LIMITED

Page [+
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For &5
Curing - - PLUS
PROTECTION
of new conerete

HERE is a new concrete floor under this

dirt and litter. Imagine what it would look
like if it were not protected—scarred, rough
and stained before the building is even oceu-
pied. But, under that rubbish there is a layer
of Sisalkraft separating the dirt and the new
concrete and at the same time holding in the
moisture that insures proper curing of the floor.
Keeping off oil stains and dripping cement, and
maintaining its protection even under the abuse
pictured, Sisalkraft makes concrete curing a
real economy because when the paper is re-
moved a clean, unscratched surface is revealed.
No scrubbing or grinding of floors is necessary.

Sisalkraft comes in rolls from 3 to 7 ft. wide,
the wider rolls makiniapplicaﬁon and removal
a quick, easy job. Take advantage of this eco-
nomical “double service” that insures properly
cured concrete—tougher, denser, more water-
proof and wear resistant—and clean concrete

as well.
Alexander MURRAY & Company
Limited
Montreal - Toronto - Halifax - St. John

Winnipeg - Vancouver

“more than a building paper®”

JRAICIGRAY

The Journal, Royal Architectural Institute of Canada

RECENT
ARCHITECTURAL BOOKS

The following is a list of architectural books recently

published which may be obtained from Architectural

Publications Limited, at the published price, carriage
and customs duties prepaid.

Avrchitectural Graphic Standards— By Charles George

Ramsey and Harold Reeve Sleeper............... $6.50
Design of Concrete Structures—By Urguhart and

SV Rourkessmamassm e i S T s 4,00
A History of Architecture (Ninth Edition). By Sir

Banister Fletcher s vemmmins sovmamomsam 12.00
Avcoustics of Buildings—By F. R. Watson........... 3.00

Kidder-Parker Architects’ and Builders' Handbook... 8.00
MNew Building Estimators Handbook—By Wm. Arthur  6.00
Metal Crafts in Architecture—By Gerald K. Geerlings 7.50

Good Practice in Construction—By Philip G. Knobloch 6,00
Modern Danish Architecture—By Kay Fisker and

v Bl Y erBUr i e ey s 1000
Modern Architecture—By Bruno Taut.............. 10.00
Modern Practical Masonry—By E. G. Warland. ..... 71.50

Modern Architectural Sculpture—By W. Aumonier.. 17.50
Avrchitectural Design in Concrete—By T. P. Bennett.. $9.00

The Practical Requirements of Modern Buildings—
By EugeneClute. . .......................... 6.00

A History of the English House—By Nathaniel Lloyd. 17.50

The Work of Sir Robert Lorimer—By Christopher
o UL S =g P o pep Sy i | 18.00

Old Houses in England—By Rowland C, Hunter.... 8.50

Houses of the Wren and Early Georgian Periods—
By Tunstall Small and Christopher Woeodbridge.. 8.00

American Apartment Houses of Today—By R. W.

Y 16.00
American Commercial Buildings of Today—By R, W,

S EREOM et 18.00
American Theatres of Today—By R. W. Sexton..... 13.50
American Public Buildings of Today—By R. W.

Sexton ... . 12.50

In addition to the above list, we carry in stock a

large number of other architectursl books which

can be seen at the office of The Journal, RA.LC.

A list of these books will be sent to architects
outside of Toronto upon request.

ARCHITECTURAL PUBLICATIONS
LIMITED

74 KING STREET EAST TORONTO, ONT.

Cheques payable to Architectural Publications Limited

Page




NICHOLSONS
CUT STONE, vivitep

Successors to Nicholson & Curtis

OPERATING A COMPLETE UP-TO-
DATE PLANT WITH CAPACITY
FOR LARGE SIZED CONTRACTS.

ARCHITECT'S PLANS AND SPECIFI-
CATIONS CAREFULLY FOLLOWED.
THE HIGHEST QUALITY OF
WORKMANSHIP GUARANTEED.

PLANT AT LEASIDE, ONT.

T. G. NICHOLSON, Pres.
A. A. NICHOLSON, Sec. Treas. JAMES SCOTT, Sups.

AN INTERESTING MODERN APPLICATION OF CUT STONE
CIRCULAR STAIRCASE IN RESIDENCE OF A. H. C. PROCTOR, ESQ.
HUGH L. ALLWARD, ARCHITECT STUNE WORK BY NICHOLSONS

RED DIAMOND
PIPE

Reduces installation costs because it is
easier to cut; easier to thread, and is
more dependable than ordinary

pipe.

To ensure getting the best value,
insist on Red Diamond Pipe.

Look for the label on every length
or bundle.

We also make Nipples and Couplings.
CANADIAN TUBE AND STEEL PRODUCTS

LIMITED
MONTREAL




Cafeterin in the head office
building of the Bell Telephone
Company of Canada in
Montreal. Cafeteria counter
and trim are of Monel Metal,

Monel Metal equipment in

the kitchen of the Bell Tele-

phone Company's building in
Montreal.

Monel Metal is an alley

containing approximately

seventy per cent. nickel

and thirty per cent. copper

—ua product of Canadian
mines.

CANADIAN

Headquarters

HIS fine installation of Monel Metal food service equipment typifies the
Bell Telephone Company’s policy of buying for the future as well as the
present. This silvery nickel alloy combines all the characteristics that insure
inviting attractiveness, economical maintenance and long life. It is rust-
proof; it resists corrosion; it has a hard, glass-smooth surface. Consequently,

it is extremely easy to keep clean. Low upkeep is insured by Monel Metal’s
steel-like strength, and the fact that it has no coating to chip, crack or
wear off. Further information regarding the application of Monel Metal to
food service equipment, architectural metal work or other uses, will be sent
on request.

NICKEL PRODUCTS

25 KING STREET WEST, TORONTO
A Subsidiary of
THE INTERNATIONAL NICKEL COMPANY OF CANADA

VMONEL METAL .....

brightens the cafeteria and

kitchen of Montreal’s Telephone

Architects: Barott &
Blackader, Montreal.
Associate Architects:
F. I. McNah, Bell
Telephone Company.
Monel Metal equip-
ment  manufactured
and installed by Geo_
R. Prowse Range Co.
Limited, Montreal,

LIMITED

LIMITED
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